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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS:

Q1:  Who is the incumbent?

A1:  The incumbent is Systems Planning and Analysis, Inc.
Q2:  What is the incumbent contract number?

A2:  The incumbent contract number is N00039-98-C-0101

Q3:  Is there, or are you going to develop, an interested parties list?

A3:  If you click on the link “View Prospective Bidders List for this Solicitation” a list will appear of all parties who have subscribed to this solicitation.

Q4:  Is this and the Market Survey 154A6 "N816 ASSESSMENT PROCESS SUPPORT" the same opportunity?

A4: Yes

Q5: Will the RFP require oral presentations as part of the offeror's proposal?

A5:  We don't know yet.

Q6:  Will the resultant RFP have small business subcontracting goals? If yes, what does the Government anticipate these goals to be for each small business class (i.e., small disadvantaged business, women-owned small business, service disabled veteran, HUB Zone, and Historically Black Colleges and Universities and Minority institutions)?

A6:  Absent special permission, the solicitation will include the following FY 02 Navy Subcontracting Goals for information purposes:
Small Business 48.3%
Woman-Owned Small Business 7.9%
Small Disadvantaged Business 8.6%
HUB Zone 2.5%
Service-disabled Veteran owned small business 3.0%

SDB goals less than 5%, WOSB and HUB Zone Small Businesses not containing a positive goal must include supporting justification and be approved two levels above the contracting officer.

Q7:  Will the final RFP include sample tasks or problems?

A7:   We don't know yet.

Q8:  What is the Government's acquisition strategy with respect to number of contracts awarded: will there be single or multiple contract awards?

A8:  We anticipate a single contract award.

Q9:  What is the approximate funding for the base year?

A9:  The government estimate referenced in the synopsis is $40M over 5 years.

Q10:  Will there be a Bidders Conference for this effort?

A10:  No

Q11:  Will all contractor personnel be based at the Pentagon or will

some be at non-government site locations?

A11:  We expects to have from 2-4 (full-time/part-time) contractor

personnel work on site at the Pentagon.  The majority of work will be

conducted at contractor facilities with visits to the client's office in the

Pentagon and other government facilities as needed.

Q12:  SOW Paragraph 3.2.1 indicates contractors will be a part of

teams from the Navy Warfare Centers and Laboratories, University

Laboratories and FFRDCs but does not indicate where contractor personnel

will be located.  Please Clarify.

A12: Campaign-level and Global Presence analysis will be conducted by the on-site

contractor (see #11) and N81 military/government team.  Mission and

engagement-level analysis will be conducted by contractor teams at their own

sites and Navy Warfare Center/Laboratory teams at their own sites, and feed

into the campaign analysis though working meetings and data transfers. 

Q13:  What are the geographical places of performance anticipated for

this contract?  How much work will be required to be conducted on-site at

Government facilities?  

A13:  As per #12, the Campaign-level and Global Presence analysis will be conducted

at the government facility (OPNAV N81, currently in the Pentagon).  We

anticipate this will be about 25% of the workload, although that will vary

with analytical tasking.  The remainder of the work would be conducted at the

contractor's own facilities, which should be near enough to the Pentagon to

facilitate data/analysis meetings (DC Metro area at a minimum, optimally in

Arlington.)

Q14:  Ref SOW Para 3.2.6, War Game/Seminar Support:  Approximately

how many war games and/or seminars per year will the contractor be required

to support?

A14: Historically, over the past six years, it has been about one per

year.  Some years we have sent a team to participate in other sponsor's

games, such as the Naval War College Global series, and some years we have

sponsored our own (RMA War games I/II in 1998.)

Q15:  Is the NAICS code value an average?

A15:  Yes, it is an average over three years.

Q16: Would winning this contract preclude the contractor from entering into other U.S. Navy contracts that have Modeling and Sim as core technologies such as FORCE net?

A16:  It could!  There will be an OCI clause that captures the intent of FAR 9.5

Q17:  Is there a general idea for the effort of work associated with the various labor categories (hours of work per year)?

A17:  Government proposed labor categories/hours will be provided in the RFP.

Q18:  Is there a typically used fee associated with SPAWAR Cost-Plus-Fixed-Fee contracts?

A18:  There is no standard fee except that it must not exceed statutory maximums imposed by 10 U.S.C. 2306(d) and 41 U.S.C. 254(b).

Q19:  Who in PD-15 will oversee this effort?

A19:  That information will be included in the award document.

Q20:  Is it possible to get a copy of the existing contract that is in force and a point of reference?

A20:  Pat Walls is our Freedom of Information POC.  He can be reached at 619-524-7052 or patrick.walls@navy.mil

Q21:  What is the classification of the program? Unclas, Secret, etc.

A21:  Secret

Q22:  Is there a Task Order for labor classification/pricing purposes?  

A22:  The procurement is planned to be a task order requirement.

Q23:  Is the RFP release on schedule for the 15th?

A23:  No, it is now estimated 16 September 2002 or earlier.

Q24:  By signing this form, does that preclude me from writing modules for my company's RFP?

A24: Contract # N00039-98-C-0101, clause H5 is the organization conflict of interest clause in this contract.  It is in respect to all contractor/subcontractor personnel working under this contract.  It addresses limitations on your company for subsequent procurements.  The burden of proof is on the contractor to show that none of their “technical support and management assistance” contributed to systems/services or making of the statement of work used in the competitive procurement.  However, while we make the call on whether to require a COI/ND agreement regarding various acquisitions, we can't give prospective advice to contractors on matters such as whether they may submit/prepare proposals.  The contractor needs to determine for itself (with its own counsel, if appropriate) whether it is precluded from bidding in light of any OCI/COI issues surrounding existing work it is performing for the procuring agency.  If the contractor makes the wrong call and submits a proposal, we may disqualify it or take other appropriate action.

Q25:  As an employee owned company we (myself and my 4 team members) all have stock holdings in our company (either directly or indirectly through 401K), how does that affect paragraph four of the nondisclosure statement we have to sign?

A25:  If contractor personnel are not participating in any efforts surrounding the procurement, i.e. drafting the SOW, section L and M and/or reviewing offerors proposals, they are not required to sign a nondisclosure statement.  However, we need to keep in mind -- and make certain all hands understand -- that we are not in the business of supplying advice to contractors and their employees about how they would be expected to act in hypothetical situations.  If a conflict arises, an OCI clause is violated, or if a COI/ND Statement is violated, we will respond appropriately, regardless of any "advice" that may have been provided to contractors.

Q26:  Is the customer looking for a large scale integrator with lots of programmatic and technical capabilities or is the customer more

interested in a services-oriented company for providing a labor pool?

A26: Neither - we're looking for an analytical organization with a broad depth of knowledge and capabilities.  Not just progammatic powerpoint whizzes, and not just bodies for hire.

Q27: Is there a general feel for the work break-out geographically

(East and West coast)?

A27: Anticipated labor breakout - 100% east coast, 0% west coast.

Q28: Is there a feel for if the PM should be in San Diego or in

Arlington?

A28: Based on #27,the PM should be on the East Coast (Arlington, VA).

Q29: In assessing the solicitation, there is a requirement for Model Simulation Maintenance and Development of a standard set of models for use in IWAR analyses (para. 3.4.4 in SOW).  Is there a listing of this standard set of models?  For example, is the Naval Simulation System (NSS), Joint Simulation System (JSIMS), Joint Effect Model (JEF), and NBC Model in that standard set of models?

A29: No, there is no standard set of models.  General Campaign Analysis Model (GCAM) is the primary model currently used in support of the N816 assessment effort. GCAM was developed by the incumbent. GCAM is an integrator of output from other models. Other models used are those recommended by the various IWARS codes.  N816 has used TACWAR, ITEM, NSS and various scoping level models in the past to provide input files to GCAM, but JWARS may become the model of choice for future use.  JWARS is a Joint model supported by J8 and specifically designed to support acquisition and C4I architecture issues.

Q30:  I would like to know if you have any information regarding the possible reorganization of N816 and the possibility that this solicitation may be cancelled or significantly modified.

A30:  N816 is reorganizing but the requirement still exists.

In reference to SOW SECTION 3.4.4, the following questions Q31 through Q38 are applicable:

Q31: Please identify the specific core set of model and simulation supporting analytical tools the Government intends to use, onsite and at contractor facilities, as the baseline for IWAR and BCAPP analyses. (e.g. GCAM, ITEM, EADSIM, COMOS, FORSAT, etc.)

A31: N81 currently intends to use, for its onsite theater campaign/global forward presence analysis, ITEM, FORSAT, JWARS (as development permits), and possibly NSS (now under evaluation). For the offsite mission-level analysis, we assume the contractor will use EADSIM, COSMOS, and other standard mission level models as appropriate, but have no desire to rule out any accredited and appropriate simulations the contractor proposes to use in supporting N81 requirements.

Q32: Does the Government intend to provide these core model and simulation tools as GFE?

A32:  Our onsite models would be provided and supported as GFE (including training). The offsite models are the property of the supporting contractor and would be supported by them (but could also be used to support other customers, of course). 

Q33:  Does the Government have full data rights to these core model and simulation tools?

A33:  Data and applications - yes. Licensing was obtained from the model developer for each onsite.
Q34:  If the core model and simulation supporting analytical tools are not made available as GFE, will the Government allow the cost for purchasing any required tools to be reimbursed?

A34:  Specialized software procured and used specifically in support of this effort would be reimbursable as a direct charge but the cost of hardware and maintenance would belong to the contractor.  Title would belong to the government.  

Q35:  Please identify the model and simulation tools the Government plans to upgrade and the estimated timeline when the Government intends to have these upgrades in place.  Also please identify any next generation (e.g.  GCAM, ITEM, NSS, JWARS) model and simulation tools the Government is currently evaluating or intends to use in the future for IWAR and BCAPP analyses.

A35: Upgrades to model and simulation tools will depend on future IWAR requirements and/or advances in computer technology.

Q36:  Does the Government intend to provide these model and simulation tools as GFE?

A36:  See answer number 32.

Q37:  If the model and simulation supporting analytical tools are not made available as GFE, will the Government allow the cost for purchasing any required tools to be reimbursed?

A37:  See answers number 31 and 32 above.

Q38: If GCAM and JWARS, along with other input models mentioned [including Naval Simulation System (NSS) developed by METRON] used in IWAR and BCAPP process will be maintained and further developed by N816 support contractor under this proposed solicitation, then will the necessary technical data (source code, systems specification, interface control document, etc.) be made available as GFI?  What will be expected of the bidders when writing to para. 3.4.4 ... will this require only general knowledge and experience in developing and maintaining models or will this require specific knowledge on models used by N816 including GCAM and JWARS?  If specific knowledge is required, then will sufficient technical information be provided to bidders on N816 models such as GCAM, NSS, TACWAR, ITEM, JWARS, etc.?  

A38:  We have three campaign models. Two are our principle tools: GCAM and ITEM. JWARS is only here for Beta testing, but we will probably use it a lot more in the future.  We also have NSS here for evaluation purposes, but its future is uncertain. We intend to train and support the selected team on the aforementioned in-house models. The contractor-site mission-level feeder models, would be provided as GFP i.e.
- EADSIM, COSMOS, etc, but we hope any serious applicant for the contract is already familiar with the commonly accepted mission level models, and may even have some they already own which they would recommend. We have no bias for or against any particular mission level models, but bidding teams MUST understand they will be expected to hit the ground running for analysis support, and not start training people on basic mission level model operation after they win.

In reference to L-317, the following questions Q39 through Q44 are applicable:

Q39:  Due to the complexity of some graphic elements, can we suggest that exhibits (charts and graphics) be exempt from the 12-point font size restriction.  We recommend a minimum of 8 point for these exhibits.

A39:  Font no smaller than 8 point is acceptable for graphics only.

Q40:  Please clarify the page limitation requirement referenced in L-317(b).  The two limitations specified (75 pages one-sided and 50 pages double-sided) are not equivalent.  Which requirement should apply?

A40:  The new page limitation will be 75 pages one-sided and 38 pages double-sided.

Q41:  Does the term “participant” referenced in L-317(b)(3)(A)(iii) refer to individual persons being proposed or is a “participant” a teaming company?

A41:  Participant refers to a teaming company.

Q42:  Regarding L-317 (b)(3)(A)(iii), is the percentage of work to be performed the annual hours for each person divided by the total annual hours for the contract; or is it for the total over the life of the contract?  Also, are the hours to show the annual hours, or the life of the contract?

A42:  We want the percentage of work by year and a summary total, especially if the hours change annually.

Q43:  Regarding L-317(b)(3)(iv) and L-348, the subcontractor competition plan appears to be for a SOW that has requirements for developing subsystems.  Is it appropriate for this RFP?  

A43:  No, the reference to subcontractor competition plan will be removed.

Q44:  How many CD ROM copies are required?

A44: VOLUME I, Technical: (3) CD ROM copies.  VOLUME II, Cost: two (2) CD ROM copies

Q45:  It is not clear if FAR 52.215-20 refers to the prime alone or also includes the subcontractors.

A45:  Part II(4) references subcontractors and addresses that subcontractor information may be submitted by the subcontractor under separate cover directly to the Contracting Officer.

In reference to 5252.237-9403, the following questions Q46 and Q47 are applicable:

Q46:  Are individual labor category minimum qualifications from each proposed subcontractor required, in addition to those for the prime offeror?

A46:  Yes, if a subcontractor is functioning in a key personnel labor category, minimum qualifications are required.

Q47:  If a company decides to use the government’s labor categories to determine minimum qualifications, is the company still required to develop company specific labor categories?

A47:  Unless your labor categories are exactly like the Government categories, provide your actual corresponding labor category adjacent to the Government category provided.

Q48:  There is duplication among many RFP Sections that may cause confusion for offerors.  For example, past performance/corporate experience is discussed in Sections L-317, L-325 and L-5.5.  Can the Government consider consolidating the RFP requirements where feasible, to eliminate confusion?  

A48:  The Government will reference that past performance data shall be placed in Section E, Corporate Experience.

Q49:  Regarding 5252.237-9402, is proprietary resume cost information that is provided directly and separately to the government by subcontractors to be in hard copy only, or also on CDs and electronically?

A49:  The subcontractor should provide directly to the Government a hard copy and CD of their proprietary cost information.

Q50:  As L-345 requires resumes in the specified Attachment 9 “Resume Format” provided with the solicitation, and as that specified format is single-spaced in 10-point font, is it intended that the resumes comply with the Attachment 9 format or with the L-317 requirement to be 12-point font, double-spaced?

A50:  Conforming to the form’s Font is acceptable.

Q51: Must tables used in the proposal be 12-point, double-spaced if there is more than one line of text in a table box?

A51:  Use a font that is appropriate to fit the text in the table.

Q52:  L-325 PAST PERFORMANCE INFORMATION: Where in the proposal shall the Attachment 6, “Reference Information Sheet” forms be placed?  If they are to be placed in I-E, the number of forms necessary for highly experienced teams of several companies could exceed the allowable page count.  Are these forms to be included in the page count?  If the forms are included in the page count, are the attachments to that attachment (the DCMA Subcontracting Program Compliance Review Rating, and the summary description of contract work) counted in the page count?  Also, as Attachment 6 instructs offerors to not change the spatial structure of the form, and as the structure of the form is 8-point font single-spaced, should the form be filled in using that structure, or should 12-point, double-space be used as directed in L-317?  Please also indicate whether the attachments should comply with L-317 or with the instructions for Attachment 6.

A52:  Attachment 6 “Reference Information Sheet” for each contract, (minimum 3/maximum 10), shall be placed in Section E, Corporate Experience/Past Performance and included in the page count.  The attachments to Attachment 6, “Reference Information Sheet , i.e. (the DCMA Subcontracting Program Compliance Review Rating, and the summary description of contract work) are not counted in the page count.  Use no less than 10 point to complete the form. 

Q53: Are the required section cover sheets included in the allowed maximum page count as per L-349 SUBMISSION OF ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS?

A53:  No.

Q54:  DD254: The solicitation DD254 indicates SCI is not required, yet the IWAR assessment process includes C4ISR, IW, and other areas that usually are SCI.  Will the award DD254 require SCI?

A54:  All of our analysis is currently done at the Secret level, so SCI is not required. However, if the contractor has SCI facilities and the capability to work at that level, they should indicate so in their proposal.  

Q55: On the web site the criteria is stated that the small business size is $23M, but in the RFP, no qualification in Section L-3.3 Small Business Plan is mentioned.  My company qualifies for the SBIR program (for example, under NAICS 541710, being under 500 employees).  Given the restriction on the web, but no/restriction qualification in the RFP), if we were a sub to a prime that bid on this program, then will the prime get credit for our participation as a small business, or would we be counted as just another large business with no credit to the prime for small business participation?

A55:  The NAICS code and small business size standard for this procurement has been reviewed and confirmed that 541330 with $23M size standard is accurate by not only the SBA but also our local Small Business office.  FAR 19.102 requires, for size standard purposes, that we choose only ONE NAICS code that best describes the principal nature of the product or service being acquired even though it could be classified with more than one.  Although there may be an element of R&D to this procurement, the NAICS code that best describes the procurement would be 541330.  Section L-3.3 would not include the NAICS and size standard.  That information will be included in Section K when the solicitation is released. 
The size standard for ALL SBIR solicitations is 500 employees, regardless of the product/service being provided.  This is a special statute that falls outside of FAR 19.102.  This procurement is not issued under the SBIR statute so that definition cannot apply. 

Regarding subcontractors, the NAICS and size standard for a subcontractor is established by the prime contractor, again, based on the principal nature of the product or service being acquired ON THE SUBCONTRACT.  If the prime contractor is a large business, they would have to submit a subcontracting plan showing small business goals based upon the percent of total subcontracted amount.  The large business prime would get credit for the subcontractors utilized that meet the small business size standard for the specific work each of them is performing.

Q56:  Will the brief be available electronically?

A56:  Yes, the brief was posted 26 Feb 2003 on the SAPWAR's e-commerce website at <https://e-commerce.spawar.navy.mil>.

Q57:   When will a Request for Procurement (RFP) be issued?

A57:  Estimate that an RFP will be issued within a month or by approximately 15 March.
Q58:  Will the previous Statement of Work (SOW) be used with the RFP?

A58:  Yes.  While there have been organizational changes and new names for some of the analytic products, the type of work required by the SOW remains the same.

Q59:  Will the SOW address the N81 portion only?

A59:  The SOW will address OPNAV campaign analyses.  This is not an independent N81 effort, rather a team effort that involves N6/N7 and the other resource sponsors.  N81 will pay for the baselines and some of the additional excursions.  N6/7 will pay for most excursion work plus any mission level modeling & analyses.  N6/7 may elect to use other contracts for the mission level work as well..

Q60:  There appears to be a desire to realign MCPs and warfare capabilities.  The slides indicate this.  Will they be fully aligned or separate?

A60:   N70 just finished a proposal to the N6/N7 Board of Directors to fine tune the alignment of the MCPs (Mission Capability Packages) to the Naval Capabilities Plan (NCPs).  The result will be that the MCPs will align to only one NCP. 

Q61:  What do you mean by one-to-one alignment?  Will there be a conventional and unconventional piece?

A61:  Yes.

Q62:  When will the contract be awarded?  What is the RFP due date?  What is the response date?

A62:  The RFP will be due 30 days from the date the RFP is let.  Offerors can anticipate an award by the end of FY03.   In addition, see Q57. 

Q63:  Is the bidders' list being posted?

A63:  Yes. A list containing vendors information that registered for the Technical brief was posted 26 Feb 2003 on SPAWAR's e-commerce website.  In addition, review Q3 for guidance to access vendors who have registered to the subject solicitation under SPAWAR's e-commerce website. 

Q64:  Will small business goals be considered?

A64: Yes, reference section L of the RFP.  

Q65:  Are orals required?

A65:  Reference Q5.

Q66:  How big of a job do you expect this to be?  How many man years?  

A66:  Approximately $5-$6M a year for core capabilities are estimated by the Government.  We have a $10M/year ceiling.   Not only N81 but also N6/N7 resources are used.  We may have a ceiling issue, but this cannot be predicted.  The Government estimates 49 staff years each for the basic and all options with a work year defined to be 2080 hours.

Q67:  For Labor Category Program Manager/Principal Engineer does a Bachelor's degree in Naval Science from the U.S. Naval Academy qualify under engineering or physical science?

A67: A Bachelor’s degree in Naval Science is acceptable for labor category Program Manager/Principal Engineer.
Q68:  Is a Bachelor's degree in Computer Information Systems equivalent to a Bachelor's degree in Computer Science?
A68:   Degree in Computer Science or Computer Information Systems can be considered as equivalent for the purpose of meeting SOW requirements.  
Q69:  Does a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Technology qualify under the degree requirements for Senior Analyst?
A69:  Yes  

Q70:  Regarding substituting experience for a degree under Associate Engineer and Associate Analyst ... what would be included in "appropriate disciplines"?
A70:  Work experience in lieu of education requirements considered appropriate disciplines would be in the areas of engineering, physical science, computer sciences, operations research, mathematics, physics, management, economic, and accounting.  Also, areas of considerations may be given to unique education, specialized experience, skills, knowledge, training, certification, military training and/or experience, and quality of experience.  

Q71:  Section H-12 addresses local travel.  Is travel/mileage/parking expenses from contractor's facility to meetings directed by the government at a government facility allowable under this clause?

A71:  It depends!  If the employee resides in the metropolitan area in which the services are being performed, then the contractor shall not be paid for travel mileage within a driving radius of 50 miles from the contractor's home facility.  However, for transportation other than the above, the contractor shall be paid on the basis of actual amounts paid to the extent that such transportation is necessary and authorized by the Government.  In addition, expenses (as defined in the regulations cited in FAR 31.205-46 (a)(2)(i) through (iii)) shall be considered to be reasonable and allowable only to the extent that they do not exceed on a daily basis the maximum per diem rates in effect at the time of travel as set forth in the above referenced FAR site.

Q72:  The Sr. Analyst position is broader in educational scope (i.e. types of degrees) than the Associate Analyst.  Will the final RFP reflect the broader educational scope

(additional types of degrees) for the Assoc Analyst?

A72:  No.

Q73: The estimated Level of Effort has increased considerably, is the estimated

ceiling going to increase?  If it is going to increase what will the new estimated contract ceiling going to be?

A73:  No, Section B of the RFP specifies the amount of hours required for this task.  The contractor is requested to provide a quote accordingly and any exceptions to the Government’s data shall be supported by contractor rational.   

Q74: L-336 states the Government furnished facilities as described in Section "H" shall be provided for approximately 25% of the effort.  There are no Government facilities sited in Section "H", where and when will you site the location of the Government facilities.

A74:  SOW paragraph 3.1 references onsites facilities where the effort may require the contractor to work. Paragraph H-4 of the RFP will be modified to include the SOW reference and the facilities will be governed by Section I FAR 52.245-11incorporated by reference.

Q75:  If a company has employees in the Reserves that have been called to Active

Duty and/or can be called to Active Duty and they are bid in a Key Personnel Labor Category, will there be any restrictions or penalties if they are serving Active Duty with the Armed Forces?

A75:  No.  Any active duty call is considered an extraordinary circumstance and would be exempt from any key personnel clause restriction and/or penalty.

Q76:  Would the Government consider a 30 day extension to the proposal submission date for solicitation number N0039-02-PR001 (Modeling and simulation and 
analytically based warfare analyses)?

A76:  No.  The basic SOW and work statements have remained unchanged and posted for all to see for quite some time. The SOW that was posted with the draft RFP was adequate for the contractor to use to proceed to build their proposal.  The subsequent changes N81 provided in the 08 May revision of the SOW did not impact the factors being evaluated as referenced in Amend 0001 of the RFP.  The only changes made were to remove some of the process terminology.  The underlying tasks of performing campaign or mission level analysis, often using models of various types remains the basic core of the SOW. 

Q77: Are resumes only required for key personnel and site the RFP reference?

A77: Notwithstanding L-345, offerors are not required to submit resumes of non-key personnel.  However, offerors shall include a description of all proposed  labor categories and must demonstrate in their proposal an ability and present intentions to provide personnel necessary to perform SOW tasks.

Q78: Will the incumbent contractor be required to write a transition plan?

A78:  Yes, in that respect the provisions of the RFP is the same as the current contract clause FAR 52.237-7 Continuity of Service.  

Q79:  In the example Matrix on page 55 of 83, there is a column for "Percentage of

Total Hours Estimated".  Is this the percentage of total hours for a contract year, or man year?

A79:  Total hours for a contract year.

Q80:  Page 61, Section (3) (A) (v) Section E - Corporate Experience/Past

Performance requires that the offeror "...shall  provide sample reports…”; however, Page 73, Section L-5.3 Section C - Personnel Experience requires that the offeror "...shall  provide sample reports…"

Are these samples required in Volume I Section C, Volume I Section E, or both sections of the proposal?

A80:  Notwithstanding the reference of providing sample reports prepared for past customers in L-5.3 Section C, Personnel Experience, this information shall be placed in Vol 1 Section E per L-317 (b)(3)(a)(v). 

Q81:  Regarding Blocks 12 and 13 of Attachment 6, will SPAWAR delete the questions in Blocks 12 and 13 of Attachment 6, requesting information referencing small business

participation, because information concerning the firms policies and procedures for dealing with small businesses will be submitted in Volume III Section F under

Contractor Responsibility.  Information concerning small business participation for the sited contract will be contained in Block 15 of Attachment 6 as requested?  

A81:  No.  Attachment  6 and any applicable attachments shall be placed in Volume 1 Section E per L-5.5.  The information asked for in Attachment 6 Blocks 12 and 13 are mutually exclusive of data requested in Block 15.  Block 12 should reflect the primes success in implementating the policy of the U.S. by utilizing small business concerns. Block 13 is in regards to the prime’s procedures and ability to ensure timely payments to the small business concerns referenced in Block 12.  Block 15 is requesting a summary of the requirement, its relevancy to this RFP and the extend of the prime utilizing small business in performance of the contract.  Requested attachments noted in Blocks 14 and 15 are not considered in the page count.

Q82:  Section L-349 requires proposals to be submitted electronically on 6/5/03.

Does the contractor need to also have the hardcopies and CDs delivered on the 5th or can they follow a day or two later?

A82:  All proposal versions should be submitted by 1500 pacific time on 05 Jun 2003.  However, the electronic submission to the SPAWAR e-commerce site shall govern timeliness as long as it is complete.  Reference L-349 and L-3.2 for details.

Q83:  How does the government want classified sample reports (or sample reports

containing confidential proprietary contractor data) submitted? Will these samples be included in the page count?

A83:  We request that all classified materials be removed and confidential proprietary contractor data, when mailed, could be forwarded first class.  If classified data must be submitted, and cannot be sanitized, contact our office noting the reasons why it is necessary.  Sample reports are not included in the page count. 

Q84:  After reading question Q80, we are still not certain "how" to comply with Government requirement to provide "sample reports" for Section E in Volume I as referenced in L-317 (b)(3)(A)(v) and in L-5.3.  The answer indicates that sample reports are to be placed in both Sections C and E.  However, the question is what is the Government looking for? 1) Reference to sample reports ... either individually or in a table or, 2) Excerpts of sample reports or, 3) Summary of sample reports or, 4) Actual sample report in its entirety. 

A84:  Per A80, the sample reports shall be placed in Volume 1 Section E only.  We need to see information which demonstrates relevancy to the effort provided by this solicitation.  We are looking for sample reports in their entirety (NTE 4) with a reasonable page count, which shows your company’s ability to analyze significant amounts of data; we want to see your company’s approaches used to do analysis and we want to see that your company has the ability to communicate findings to senior management within DoD.  All sample reports provided shall reference the customer’s point of contact including phone number and/or email address.

Q85:  Clause H-7 (page 23 of 83), Item (b) states that "the contractor warrants that neither it nor its affiliates have any contracts with, or any material or substantial interest in the hardware of software suppliers."  Is this item specific to this contract only or to SPAWAR?

A85:  It is a standard SPAWAR services contract clause.

Q86:  Section L-345 (Personnel Resume Requirements) requires resumes for 100% of proposed personnel.  Is the intent to collect resumes on all proposed personnel, to include administrative support?

A86:  No, please reference Q&A #77.

Q87:  In Section B, ODC’s are provided as a plug in number.  It appears that ODCs/travel are fixed.  Are contractors allowed to bid additional ODC’s outside of the amount provided in Section B of the solicitation? 

A87:  No.

Q88:  When is it anticipated the job will be awarded?

A88:  Please reference L-335 of the RFP.

Q89:  When is it anticipated the first “product” will be due?

A89:  Please reference Attachment 4, CDRLS of the RFP.

Q90:  Technical Direction letters direct completion of significant activity/products. How many Technical Direction letters are anticipated in the course of a year? 

A90:  Please reference Attachment 3 of the RFP, SPA Historical Disbursement Data File.

Q91: 5252.237-9402 Resume Requirements (Jun 1994)-Should this information be provided in the cost volume (as indicated in the subject provision) or in the Technical Proposal (as indicated in L-324 Instructions for Preparation of Technical Proposals (Dec 1999) revised, part (b), (3), which states “resumes for key personnel you propose to furnish under the proposed contract shall include the information provided in the Section L clause for Resume Requirements”)?

A91:  Yes, the information in 5252.237-9402 shall be placed in the Cost Volume only for each resume submitted in the Technical Proposal for key personnel.

Q92:  5252.237-9403 Labor Hour Category Identification (Jan 1992) Revised - Please clarify in which Volume/section the Government would like to see the requirements of this provision.

A92:  Place in Volume 1 Sec C, Personnel Experience. This information is included in the page count.

Q93:  Section L-317 Submission of Proposals (Complex) (Jul 1999) Revised -Part (b), (3), (A), (v) -  Section E Corporate Experience/Past Performance, requires offerors to submit “sample reports prepared customers that demonstrated analysis of significant amount of data, the approaches used to do the analysis, and the ability of the contractor to communicate findings to senior management within DoD.”  Should these sample reports be provided in an Appendix to the Technical Proposal? Do these sample reports count toward the page limitations?

A93:  Please reference answer numbers 80, 83 and 84 above.

Q94: Section L-324 Instructions for Preparation of Technical Proposals (Dec 1999) Revised - For the specific information requested to be included in the Technical Proposal per Section (b) of this provision, we assume items (1) – (6) should be included in the Technical Proposal Sections (as defined in L-317 Submission of Proposals (Complex) (Jul 199) revised).  Can the Government verify the placement of these items?

A94:  Item (1) belongs in Section D; Item (2) belongs in Section E; Item (3) belongs in Section C; Item (4) belongs in Section D; Item (5) belongs in Section C and Item (6) belongs in Section D.

Q95:  L-325 Past Performance Information - This provision states that past performance references should be provided in Attachment 6 “Reference Information Sheet” format and that they do count toward page limitations. Do the font requirements/line spacing limitations defined in L-317 Submission of Proposals (Complex) (Jul 1999) Revised, Part (b) (to include 12 point font and double spacing) apply to these Reference Information Sheets?

A95:  Please reference answer number 52 above.

Q96:  Section L-5.2.1 Statement of Work Areas - Numbering in this section seems off (A, B, A, B, C). Please verify this should be (A, B, C, D, E).

A96:  The alpha sequence was corrected by Amendment 0001 of the RFP.

Q97: Section L-5.3 Personnel Experience - This section states that “the offeror shall provide sample reports prepared for past customers that demonstrated analysis of significant amount of data, the approaches used to do the analysis, and the ability of the contractor to communicate findings to senior management within DoD”. Is this a requirement for personnel or for past performance/corporate experience as cited in Section L-317 Submission of Proposals (Complex) (Jul 1999) Revised? If this is a requirement for personnel experience, should these sample reports be provided in an Appendix to the Technical Proposal? Do these sample reports count toward the page limitations?

A97:  Please reference answer numbers 80, 83 and 84 above.

Q98:  Section L-5.3 Personnel Experience - The section states that the offeror shall provided “a signed contingent employee agreement” if the individual is not currently employed by the offeror. In addition, it states that “failure to provide the certification and letters of intent for all prospective personnel may result in disqualification…” Are we to assume that in addition to signed resumes required by all personnel, each personnel that is not currently employed by the offeror requires two additional items (the contingency employee agreement and a letter of intent)? Should these agreements and letters be placed behind the individual’s resumes?

A98:  Reference answer number 77.  For individuals who are not actually employed, the offeror shall include, one document, a signed contingent employee agreement executed by the individual stating an intent to accept employment if the offeror were to receive a contract award.  The signed contingent employee agreement shall be placed in Vol 1, Section C and is not included in the page count.     

Q99:  In which section would the Government like to see the completed Attachment 8, Personnel Matrix?

A99:  Attachment 8, Personnel Matrix shall be placed in Volume 1 Section C and is included in the page count.

Q100:  Pg. 72, L.-5.2.2 A.  Define "threat force size and level of capability".   How do we determine the source/classification level from which this should be derived?  This also applies to paragraph B.

A100:  The contractor will need to provide a draft on the order of battle that relates to the scenarios that we are using. This draft will be checked by our contacts in the intelligence community for the time frame that we are working.  Once the intelligence community agrees, we use them as the reference. Typically, the document is classified as SECRET/NOFORN.

Q101:  SOW pg.5, paragraph 3.2.2.2  "US combined, coalition and threat forces."  Does "US combined" mean "joint"?

A101:  Yes.

Q102:  Section L-4  (Mandatory Requirements) states that all proposed key personnel shall obtain secret security clearances within 120 days.  Does this mean that other personnel, specifically associate engineers and associate analysts do not require security clearance at the secret level? 

A102:  No, all require SECRET level security clearance.  Reference M-4(c).

Q103: There has been significant churn over the use of IWARs. Is it certain this methodology will remain a part of the PPBS?

A103:  The IWAR term was removed per Amendment 0001; however, there will continue to be independent cross cutting analysis performed by N81, some of which the awardee under this requirement will perform or support with their analyses.

Q104:  Quick Reaction Capability Support for repetitive 24-hour reaction responses. How many short-fused requests are anticipated? Will this be the exception or the norm?

A104:  The navy staff performs this type of work routinely.  On occasion the contractor will need to support such tasks; so it’s not the exception or the norm, but rather somewhere in between.  It will not require a dedicated workforce from the contractor, just the occasional ability to surge.

Q105: The objective of the CPAM process is to establish warfighting and cost effectiveness of alternative Navy investment strategies. Is there a current means to assess/document this effort? Will it be available to bidders?

A105:  We are interested in the contractor’s ideas on how to do this.  Our examples are pre-decisional and will not be released.

Q106:  The contractor is tasked with providing scenarios. Will OPNAV provide any guidance on this matter, or is the scenario entirely at the discretion of the contractor?

A106:   Per the SOW, the Contractor will need to work with the Navy, other services, joint staff and OSD.  Scenarios will not be at the discretion of the contractor.

Q107:  The contractor is tasked with developing and maintaining databases for IWARS and BCAPP analyses and analyses performed to support CPAM development. Is there any current documentation available?

A107:  No.

Q108:  The contractor is tasked with significant data collection requirements. Will the contractor have authority to task naval activities to provide information in a timely manner?

A108:  The contractor will need to work with the Navy to establish the procedure and guidance to obtain such information.  Typically, a letter is drafted from N81 authorizing the contractor to request information from various organizations.

Q109:  The bidder is tasked with significant responsibilities for War Games/Seminar support. How many events are anticipated a year, what is the anticipated size, and where will they be located?

A109:  Currently, approximately 5-10 games are conducted across the staff with a range of size, and location.  Most would not be tasked to this contract to conduct, but the contractor would probably have some support role in most of them. 

Q110:  The contractor is tasked to draw on various IWAR analyses, war game results, and other sources. Is there a master list of available documentation and location?

A110:  No.

Q111:  Since the Government has decided not to require offerors to submit resumes for non-key personnel, yet it still requires that individuals be bid by name and actual salary, how will the Government verify, prior to contract award, that those non-key personnel in fact meet the labor category qualifications specified in the RFP?  We respectfully request that the Government consistently adhere to the requirements stated in the RFP to submit resumes of all proposed personnel.

A111:  The Government believes the RFP adequately describes the desired qualifications of all personnel.  Demanding the suggested additional information of non-key personnel is not considered necessary.  The Cost Labor Matrix in Section L, Part 1(1) of 52.215-20 provides an example for submission of non-key personnel data.

Q112:  It is our understanding that it is a Government function to classify and declassify documents, and we are, therefore, restricted in our ability to comply with your guidance in Q83 regarding the declassifying/sanitizing of classified sample reports.  Please advise!

A112:  The contractor, should coordinate with their Facility Security Officer (FSO) and together they are responsible to comply with the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (NISPOM), DoD 5220.22-M.  In this case, Chapter 4, paragraph 4-102, Derivative Classification Responsibilities.  If the FSO is unable to provide adequate assistance, then the FSO should contact their locally assigned Defense Security Service (DSS) Industrial Security Representative (IS Rep) for training and guidance.  Regarding  the classified material/source documents in question, the Originating Classification Authority (OCA), should provide the specific Classification Guidance/Markings for the program/project in which the contractor is proposing to derive classified sample reports.  It is not SPAWAR's responsibility to determine if the classified material is releasable or not.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to formerly request release of this classified material (in part or whole) from the OCA and to specify within their request the reason for disclosure.  If the OCA grants permission to do so, then the FSO should assist the contractor with following the classification guidance to generate the derivative classification for the classified sample reports. Or, if necessary, the FSO should contact their DSS IS Rep for further assistance. 

Q113:  Pg. 72, L.-5.2.2 A.  What is an "Expeditionary Assault Group"?  Where is it defined?  What doctrinal publication explains "Expeditionary Assault Group"?  Does it have a Joint meaning?

A113:  This is a new term in development.  It is a combination of Expeditionary Strike Groups (ESGs),  which were referenced in the Global CONOPS 375 Ship Brief on the web site for this RFP.

Q114:  SOW pg. 6, paragraph 3.2.3.2 "Defense Planning Scenarios (DPS).” The latest DPG does not include any scenarios.  To what extent are scenarios to be used?

A114:  The DPSs are in draft and awaiting approval from OSD. They are divided into three groups. Group one deals with Major Combat Operations (MCO), Group Two are Smaller Scale Contingencies (SSC) and group three are Future Operations.  There will also be more details to follow as OSD makes a decision.  

Q115:  As a follow-up to Q&A No. 111, since the RFP does not require the bidders to

certify that the non-key personnel meet the labor category qualifications specified in the RFP, how will the Government ensure all bidders propose non-key personnel that do meet the labor category qualifications?

A115:  The Government will review the contractor's response to Section L, 5252.237-9403, Labor Hour Category Identification to ensure minimum desired qualifications are met for each labor category proposed.

Q116: As a follow-up to Q&A 112, to what address should classified sample reports

be sent?

A116:  Formally released classified samples reports, limited to 10MG, shall be emailed to the following SIPNET address only:  White.Ulysses@cno.navy.smil.mil    

Reference: Q&A Nos. 83 and 84.
Q117:  Can the Government confirm my assumption that all Subcontractors should submit their electronic proprietary proposal submission through the SPAWAR E-Commerce site?
A117:  No, please reference Q&A No. 49.
Q118:  In the Cost Labor Matrix on page 55, is percentage of total hours estimated defined as 1) total hours by labor category, 2) total hours by year, or 3) total hours on the contract all years, all categories?  Also, how do you define estimated hours?  By base year or all years and is it to tie back to the LOE table on page 63?  
A118:  Please reference Q&A No. 79 for percentage of estimated hours.  The table on page 63 represents the Government’s current best estimate of this requirement by labor category.  The Cost Labor Matrix on page 55 shows how the offeror is supposed to provide rate information associated with each category proposed to fulfill the requirement whose mix is estimated in L-328.    
